
  

 

 

 
 

 
NORTH NORTHAMPTONSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 

 
Thursday 22 July 2021, 2.00pm 

 
Remote meeting via Zoom 

 

Raj Sohal is dealing with this Agenda: 

 
Tel. 07500 607949   E-mail: rajvir.sohal@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 

 
AGENDA 

 
*Vote required 
 

Item 
No. 

Subject Responsible Officer 

1 Apologies for non-attendance, Forum membership changes 
and declarations of interest  
 

Raj Sohal 

2 Election of Chair*  

3 Election of Vice-Chair*  

4 Minutes of meeting held on 16 March 2021 and points 
arising/officer feedback  
 

Chair 
 

5 Scheme for Financing Schools* Cathryn Walker 
 

6 Schools 2020-21 Outturn Report Hawa Bedwa 
 

7 
 

2021-22 Grant and DSG Budgets Update Hawa Bedwa 
 

8 Schools Facility Time Arrangements Helen Hudson 
 

9 
 

Schools Apprentice Levy Update 
 

Vicky Wheatley 

10 Hospital Outreach in North Northamptonshire 
 

Cath Kitchen 

11 
 

Remote Meetings (The School and Early Years Finance 
(England) Regulations 2021)* 
 

Raj Sohal 

12 Schools Forum Plan 
 
 

AnnMarie Dodds 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



  

Item 
No. 

Subject Responsible Officer 

13 Urgent Business All 
 

 
Raj Sohal 
Secretary  
 
Future Meeting Dates: 
 

 21st October 2021 

 16th December 2021 

 20th January 2022 

 17th March 2022 
 
 
Information on voting 
Every item which requires a decision to be made at a meeting of the Forum will be 
determined by a majority of the votes of members present and voting on the issue.  In the 
case of an equality of votes the Chair will have a second or casting vote. 

School and non school members are eligible to vote on all matters requiring authorisation 
or approval except: 

a) de-delegation is limited to the specific primary and secondary phase of maintained 
schools members; 

b) amendments to the school funding formula, for which the voting is restricted by the 
exclusion of non-schools members, except for PVI representatives; and 

c) retaining funding for statutory duties relating to maintained schools only is limited to 
maintained primary, secondary, special and PRU members. 
 

It is the responsibility of the forum member to declare their ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’. 
The forum member can make a short presentation at the start of the agenda item and then 
not participate in the discussions or vote on the item to which their interest is relevant.  

 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE NORTHAMPTONSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING 
TUESDAY 16th March 2021, 2.00PM 

     
Present: 
 
School Members:    
Sandra Appleby* David Ross Education Trust (Academy, North & West 

James Birkett, Chair (JB)* Wollaston School (Academy, North) 
Rob Hardcastle (RH)* Hatton Academies Trust (Academy, North) 
Lee Hughes (LH)* Peterborough Diocesan Education Trust (Academy, North 

and West) 
Pat Kelly (PK)* Millbrook Infant School (Maintained Primary, North) 
Cath Kitchen (CK)* 
 
Jon Lake (JL)* 

Hospital and Outreach Education (Alternative Provision, 
North & West) 
Althorp Partnership of Primary Schools (West) 

Kevin Latham (KL)* 
 
Iain Massey (IM)* 
Angela Prodger (AP) 

Creating Tomorrow Multi Academy Trust (Academy Special, 
North) 
Sponne School 
Pen Green Nursery 

Joanne Sanchez Thompson 
(JST, Chair)* 

Learning for Life Education Trust (Academy, North) 

Paul Wheeler (PW)* East Midlands Academy Trust (Academy, North & West) 

* also a shadow member  
  
Shadow Members:  
Laura Clarke Rowan Gate School (Maintained Special, North) 
Nikki Lamond Greenwood Academy Trust (Academy, North & West) 
Peter Leaver Pathfinder Schools Academy Trust (Academy, North) 

  

Non-school Members:  

Hayley Walker (HW)* 
Rachel Hutchinson (RH) 

Blackthorn Good Neighbours Nursery (PVI, West) 
Holbourn House Day Nursery 

  
NCC Officers:  

Beth Baines (BB) Acting Group Accountant Schools Finance 
Cathi Hadley (CH) Director of Children’s Services  
Paul Hanson (PH) Democratic Services Manager (Secretary) 
Jessica Milne (JM) 
Sharon Muldoon (SM) 

Strategic Manager, Early Years 
Deputy Director, Children Families and Education 

Raj Sohal (RS) 
Emily Taylor (ET) 

Democracy Officer 
Strategic Finance Business Partner 

Carrie Trail (CT) Strategic Manager for Northamptonshire Schools 

  
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE FORUM MEMBERSHIP CHANGES AND 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
1.1 Apologies were received from Councillor Fiona Baker, Siobhan Hearne and Karen Lewis. 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 

2 

 

2. MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING HELD 19 JANUARY 2020 
 
RESOLVED that: The minutes of the meeting held on 19th January were agreed as an 
accurate record, subject to the correction of a number of descriptions of the groups various 
members represented. 
Action: Paul Hanson 
 
3. 2020/21 DSG BUDGETS AND MONITORING 
 
3.1 BB introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

 The DSG forecast outturn position for the financial year ending 31st March 2021 was 
an overspend of £3.6m, against the budget of £233m after academy recoupment 
(1.5%) - this was a reduction of £0.3m from the prior report. 

 This was mainly due to the High Needs block pressures of £4.01m relating to the 
increased number and cost of ‘out of county’ placements (£3.7m overspend), 
increased special school demand (£0.2m overspend) and increased demand for 
provision in mainstream settings (£1m overspend), which were partly offset by an 
underspend on SEN unit provision (£0.8m underspend). 

 
 The 2020/21 forecast deficit was £4m but the underspend on the schools block of 

£0.3m related to de-delegated funds, which would need to be carried forward. 
 The forecast deficit would need to be fully funded and this would be covered from a 

£3.75m planned contribution from the 2021/22 DSG budgets and 2020/21 growth 
fund underspend. 

 The in-year deficit was temporarily financed through balances which had been 
earmarked for carry-forward. 

 
 The DSG terms and conditions had changed and any overall deficit on the DSG would 

require a recovery plan in place. 
 The overall DSG position for Northamptonshire was not forecast to be in an overspend 

position at the end of 2020/21, due to large PFI reserves. However, the local authority 
was planning to implement recovery plans for the North and West Unitary 
Northamptonshire Councils, to be reported to each respective Schools Forum. 

 
 The Schools Block forecasted an underspend of £0.3m 
 The High Needs Block forecasted an overspend of £4.01m 
 The Early Years Block forecasted nil variance to budget 

 
RESOLVED that: The Forum noted the report. 

Action: Beth Baines 
 
4. LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION (UNITARY) AND CHILDREN’S TRUST UPDATE  
 

Page 4



 

3 

 

4.1 CH introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

  Background work was ongoing, moving swiftly towards unitary vesting day. 

 NCC officers were positive that the new councils would bring exciting opportunities 
with the move forward.  

 A letter had been sent from CH to provide the shadow Schools Forums with an 
update regarding the provisions of education services.  

 Virtual sessions were also planned with head teachers and members of the 
leadership teams of the new authorities, to open dialogue between education 
services and the Forums.  

 Service delivery would not be different with the move to unitary.  

 The Northamptonshire Children’s Trust launched on 1st Novemeber 2020. Final 
contractual issues had been finalised and would be in place by vesting day.  

 The two new authorities would become responsible for service delivery of the Trust 
and contract arrangements and governance of operational/strategic structures 
would be split between them. 

 
4.2 ET presented additional information to the Forum, regarding the financial aspects of the 

Children’s Trust: 
 

 For the financial year 1st April - 31st October, the authority achieved a favourable 
position underspend of £3M on the Children’s Trust.  

 The cost of the contract was on track.  

 The 2021-22 budget for the Trust had been agreed at the February 2021 shadow 
council meetings.  

 Similarly, any legacy issues and ongoing impact costs had also been determined at 
these meetings.  

 Much of the work in disaggregating council finances had been completed.  
 
RESOLVED that: The Forum noted the report. 

Action: Cathi Hadley, Emily Taylor 
 

5. EARLY YEARS 2021/22 
 
5.1 JM introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

 The local authority remained committed to meeting its statutory duties in delivering 
a high quality service to the early education and childcare sector. 

 The proposed base rates for DSG funding to the sector for both the North and West 
Northamptonshire Councils were due to be implemented from 1st April 2021. 

 The North and West Northamptonshire Councils had received increased funding 
from the DfE of: 

 8p in the base rate, per hour, for two year-olds. 

 6p for three and four year-olds. 

Page 5



 

4 

 

 The proposed base rate for 2021/22 for North Northamptonshire was an increase 
of £785K . 

 The increase for West Northamptonshire would be £935K. 

 The Forum would need to vote to approve the central funding increase of 4.2% for 
North Northamptonshire and 4.16% for West Northamptonshire. 

 
5.2 SA questioned why the deprivation rate had originally been reduced in the previous year, 

thus requiring another increase in 2021/22. JM explained that a decision was made based 
upon consultation undertaken in the previous year to decrease the deprivation rate, in 
order to increase the base rate as a whole.  

 
RESOLVED that: The Forum voted to approve the increase to the central funding 
percentage. 

Action: Jessica Milne 
 

6. HIGH NEEDS EARLY YEARS FUNDING BLOCK TRANSFER 
 
6.1 BB introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 

 

 The SEND budget sat within the Early Years block of the Dedicated Schools Grant, 
but received additional contribution from the High Needs block. 

 In order for this to continue in 2021/22, the Forum would need to approve the 
transfer of funding between the blocks.  

 In the previous two years, this transfer had been £805k from High Needs to Early 
Years. 

 However, for 2021/22 this contribution from the High Needs block would be 
reduced to £569k (£271k for North, £298k for West) 

 The Forum would need to vote to approve the transfer of these amounts 
 
6.2 KL questioned how the High Needs amount required to be transferred to the Early Years 

block had been reduced. BB explained that for 2021/22, historical teachers pensions’ 
within the High Needs and Early Years blocks had been transferred to the Central Schools 
Services block. As a consequence of removing these lines of expenditure from the blocks, 
the amount required for transfer had also reduced. 

 
RESOLVED that: The Forum voted to approve the proposal to transfer funding from the High 
Needs Block to the Early Years Block.  

Action: Beth Baines 
 
7. MAINTAINED NURSERY SCHOOL FUNDING 
 
7.1 SM introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

 There were 4 maintained nursery schools (MNS) in the North, and 5 in the west. 

Page 6



 

5 

 

 Most MNS were facing significant budget pressures and undergoing restructures, 
for the purpose of reducing costs. 

 MNS were required to submit a balanced budget to the local authority. If a school 
had forecasted budget deficit, they would be expected to restructure.  

 Many MNS had undertaken restructures but still struggled to set a balanced budget 
for 2020/21. 

 All 9 MNS were asked to complete and return a financial diagnostic tool by 
November 2020, in an attempt to identify ways of reducing costs and increasing 
income. 

 8 of the diagnostic tools had been completed at the time of Forum, with 8 meetings 
also having taken place. The final diagnostic tool was in progress and a meeting was 
soon to be arranged. 

 The MNS funding issues were not unique to Northamptonshire and were being seen 
across the country. 

 Supplementary funding would be received by the 9 MNS in full, from the DSG. Any 
increases or decreases to this supplement would also be passed onto the 9 MNS. 

 The total supplement received by MNS in 2020/21 amounted to £1.78M 

 Assuming this supplement would continue to be provided by the government into 
2022/23 and beyond, the local authority recommended a review and sector 
consultation on the distribution of the MNS supplement. 

 
RESOLVED that: That Forum noted the report. 

Action: Sharon Muldoon 
 
8. DSG BUDGETS 2021/22 UPDATE 
 
8.1 BB introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

 Work was ongoing to determine the forecasted High Needs block deficit and how this 
would be funded from the 2021/22 disaggregated DSG budgets for North and West. 

 The Early Years, Schools and Central Schools Services blocks budgets had all already 
been determined. 

 The final forecasted budget positions would be presented as the DSG budget 
monitoring at the May 2021 Schools Forum meetings. 

 
RESOLVED that: The Forum noted the report. 

Action: Beth Baines 
 
9. SCHEME FOR FINANCING SCHOOLS 
 
9.1 BB introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

 Local authorities were required to publish schemes for financing schools, setting out 
the financial relationship between them and the schools they maintained. 

Page 7



 

6 

 

 In making any changes to their schemes, local authorities were to consult all 
maintained schools in their area and receive the approval of the members of their 
Schools Forum, representing maintained schools. 

 A full consultation would be brought to Forum in May 2021, detailing any proposed 
changes to the scheme. 

 The North and West would require their own schemes. 
 
RESOLVED that: The Forum noted the report. 

Action: Beth Baines 
 
10. SCHOOLS FORUM PLAN – 2020 AND 2021 
 
10.1 PH introduced the item and highlighted the following points: 
 

 The next Schools Forum meetings for the unitary authorities would be held on: 

 25th May 2021 for West Northamptonshire 

 27th May 2021 for North Northamptonshire 
 
RESOLVED that: The Forum noted the report. 

Action: Paul Hanson 
 
11. URGENT BUSINESS 
 
11.1 There was none. 
 
There being no further business the meeting closed. 

Page 8



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

  

Version:  July 2021  

Author:   Cathryn Walker 

Author Contact:  Cathryn.Walker@northnorthants.gov.uk 

 

NORTH NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNCIL’S SCHEME 

FOR FINANCING SCHOOLS 

 

Contents 
SECTION 1:  INTRODUCTION ................................................................................. 4 

1.1 The Funding Framework ............................................................................... 4 

1.2 The role of the scheme ................................................................................. 5 

1.3 Application of the Scheme to the LA and maintained schools ...................... 5 

1.4 Publication of the scheme ............................................................................. 5 

1.4 Revision of the scheme ................................................................................. 6 

1.5 Delegation of powers to the head teacher .................................................... 6 

1.7 Maintenance of schools ................................................................................ 6 

SECTION 2:  FINANCIAL CONTROLS ..................................................................... 6 

2.1 Application of financial controls to schools ....................................................... 6 

2.2  Provision of financial information and reports ............................................ 6 

2.3  Payment of salaries; payment of bills ........................................................ 7 

2.4  Control of assets ........................................................................................ 7 

2.5  Accounting Policies (including year-end procedures) ................................ 7 

2.6  Writing off of debts ..................................................................................... 7 

2.7  Disputes regarding NNC invoices above £10,000........................................ 7 

2.8 Basis of Accounting ...................................................................................... 7 

2.9 Submission of budget plans .......................................................................... 8 

2.10 Submission of Financial Forecasts ............................................................ 8 

2.11 School resource management ................................................................... 8 

2.12 Virements .................................................................................................. 9 

2.13 Audit: General ............................................................................................ 9 

2.14 Separate external audits ............................................................................ 9 

2.15 Audit of voluntary and private funds ........................................................ 10 

2.16 Register of business interests .................................................................. 10 

2.17 Fraud ....................................................................................................... 10 

2.18 Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) .............................................. 10 

2.19 Purchasing, tendering and contracting arrangements ............................. 11 

2.20 Application of contracts to schools .......................................................... 11 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Cathryn.Walker@northnorthants.gov.uk


   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

2 

 

2.21 Central funds and earmarking ................................................................. 11 

2.22 Spending for the purposes of the school ................................................. 12 

2.23 Capital spending from budget shares ...................................................... 12 

2.24 Notice of Concern .................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 3:  INSTALMENTS OF THE BUDGET SHARE; ..................................... 13 

3.1  Frequency of instalments ......................................................................... 13 

3.2 Own Payroll Schools ................................................................................... 14 

3.3  Interest Clawback .................................................................................... 14 

3.4  Interest on late budget share payments .................................................. 15 

3.5  Bank and building society accounts ......................................................... 15 

3.6  Restrictions on accounts.......................................................................... 16 

3.7  Borrowing by schools .............................................................................. 16 

3.8  Use of School Balances........................................................................... 16 

SECTION 4:  THE TREATMENT OF SURPLUS AND DEFICIT BALANCES 

ARISING IN RELATION TO BUDGET SHARES ..................................................... 17 

4.1  The right to carry forward surplus balances ............................................. 17 

4.2  Controls on surplus balances .................................................................. 17 

4.3  Interest on surplus balances .................................................................... 18 

4.4  Obligation to carry forward deficit balances ............................................. 18 

4.5  Planning for deficit budgets ..................................................................... 18 

4.6  Charging of interest on deficit balances ................................................... 18 

4.8  Balances of closing and replacement schools ......................................... 18 

4.9  Licensed deficits ...................................................................................... 19 

4.10  Asset Purchase (Loan) Scheme .............................................................. 19 

SECTION 5:  INCOME ............................................................................................ 19 

5.1  Income from lettings ....................................................................................... 19 

5.2  Income from fees and charges ................................................................ 20 

5.4  Income from the sale of assets ................................................................ 20 

5.5  Administrative procedures for the collection of income ............................ 20 

5.6  Purposes for which income may be used ................................................ 20 

SECTION 6:  THE CHARGING OF SCHOOL BUDGET SHARES .......................... 20 

6.1  General provision .................................................................................... 20 

6.2  Basis of charges ...................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 7: TAXATION .......................................................................................... 22 

7.1  Value Added Tax ..................................................................................... 22 

7.2  Construction Industry Scheme (CIS) ....................................................... 23 

THE AUTHORITY .................................................................................................... 23 

Page 10



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

8.1  Provision of services from centrally retained budgets .............................. 23 

8.2  Provision of services bought back from NNC using delegated budgets .. 23 

8.3  Packaging ................................................................................................ 23 

8.4  Charging .................................................................................................. 23 

8.5 Service level agreements ............................................................................ 23 

8.6  Teachers’ Pensions ................................................................................. 24 

SECTION 10:  INSURANCE .................................................................................... 25 

10.1  Insurance cover ....................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 11:  MISCELLANEOUS .......................................................................... 25 

11.1  Right of access to information ................................................................. 25 

11.2  Liability of governors ................................................................................ 25 

11.3 Governor’s expenses ............................................................................... 25 

11.4 Responsibility for legal costs ................................................................... 26 

11.5 Health and Safety .................................................................................... 26 

11.6 Right of attendance for NNC Chief Finance Officer ................................. 26 

11.7 SEN ......................................................................................................... 26 

11.8 ‘Whistle blowing’ ...................................................................................... 26 

11.9 Child Protection ....................................................................................... 26 

11.10 Redundancy/Early Retirement Costs ....................................................... 27 

SECTION 12:  RESPONSIBILITY FOR REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE ............... 27 

12.1 School Responsibilities ............................................................................ 27 

SECTION 13:  COMMUNITY FACILITIES ............................................................... 28 

13.1 Community Facilities .................................................................................... 28 

13.2 Requirement to seek LA advice ................................................................... 29 

13.3 Requirements relating to the provision of advice.......................................... 29 

13.4 Funding agreements – authority powers ...................................................... 29 

 

  

Page 11



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

4 

 

SECTION 1:  INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 The Funding Framework 

 

The funding framework which replaces Local Management of Schools is set out in the 

legislative provisions in sections 45-53 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 
Under this legislation, local authorities determine for themselves the size of their schools 

budget and their non-schools education budget – although at a minimum an authority 

must appropriate its entire Dedicated Schools Grant to their schools budget. 

 

The categories of expenditure which fall within the two budgets are prescribed under  

regulations made by the Secretary of State, but included within the two, taken together,  

is all expenditure, direct and indirect, on an authority's maintained schools except for 

capital and certain miscellaneous items. 

 
Authorities may deduct funds from their schools budget for purposes specified in 

regulations made by the Secretary of State under s.45A of the Act (the centrally retained 

expenditure). 

 

The amounts to be deducted for these purposes are decided by the authority concerned, 

subject to any limits or conditions (including gaining the approval of their Schools Forum 

or the Secretary of State in certain instances) as prescribed by the Secretary of State. 

 

The balance of the schools budget left after deduction of the centrally retained 

expenditure is termed the Individual Schools Budget (ISB). Expenditure items in the non-

schools education budget must be retained centrally (although earmarked allocations 

may be made to schools). 

 

Local authorities must distribute the ISB amongst their maintained schools using a 

formula which accords with regulations made by the Secretary of State, and enables the 

calculation of a budget share for each maintained school. 

 

This budget share is then delegated to the governing body of the school concerned, 

unless the school is a new school which has not yet received a delegated budget, or the 

right to a delegated budget has been suspended in accordance with s.51 of the Act. 

 

The financial controls within which delegation works are set out in a scheme made by 

the authority in accordance with s.48 of the Act and regulations made under that 

section. 

 

All proposals to revise the scheme must be approved by the Schools Forum, though the 

authority may apply to the Secretary of State for approval in the event of the forum 

rejecting a proposal or approving it subject to modifications that are not acceptable to 

the authority. 
. 

Subject to any provision made by or under the scheme, governing bodies of schools may 

spend such amounts of their budget shares as they think fit for any purposes of their 

Page 12



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

school and for any additional purposes prescribed by the Secretary of State in 

regulations made under s.50 of the Act. 

 

Section 50 has been amended to provide that amounts spent by a governing body on 

providing community facilities or services under section 27 of the Education Act 2002 are 

treated as if they were amounts spent for the purposes of the school (s50(3A) of the 

Act.) 

 

West Northamptonshire Council (NNC) may suspend a school's right to a delegated 

budget if the provisions of the authority’s financial scheme (or rules applied by the 

scheme) have been substantially or persistently breached, or if the budget share has not 

been managed satisfactorily. 

 

A school's right to a delegated budget share may also be suspended for other reasons 

(schedule17 to the Act. 

 

NNC is obliged to publish each year a statement setting out details of its 
planned schools budget and other expenditure on children’s services, showing the 
amounts to be centrally retained and funding delegated to schools; after each financial 
year the authority must publish a statement showing outturn expenditure. 

 
The detailed publication requirements for financial statements are set out in directions 
issued by the Secretary of State. 

 
A copy of each year’s budget and outturn statement should be made easily accessible 
to all schools. 

 
Regulations also require that NNC publish their scheme and any revisions to it on a 
website accessible to the general public, by the date that any revisions come into force, 
together with a statement that the revised scheme comes into force on that date. 

 
1.2 The role of the scheme 

 

The scheme sets out the financial relationship between NNC and the maintained 

schools which it funds.  The scheme contains requirements relating to financial 

management and associated issues which are binding on both NNC and on schools. 

 

1.3 Application of the Scheme to the LA and maintained schools 

 

This scheme applies to all community, nursery, voluntary, foundation, special schools 

and Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) maintained by the NNC. This scheme does not apply 

to schools maintained by another authority nor academies. 

 

1.4 Publication of the scheme 

 

NNC will publish the local Scheme and any revision on the NNC website by the date 

that any revisions come into force, together with a statement that the revised 

scheme comes into force on that date. 

 
Page 13



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

6 

 

1.4 Revision of the scheme 

 

Any proposed revisions to the scheme will be the subject of consultation with the 

governing bodies and Head teachers of all NNC maintained schools before they are 

submitted to the North Northamptonshire Schools Forum for approval. 

 

All proposed revisions must be submitted to the schools forum for approval by 

members of the forum representing maintained schools. Where the schools forum 

does not approve them or approves them subject to modifications which are not 

acceptable to the authority, the authority may apply to the Secretary of State for 

approval. 

 

It is also possible for the Secretary of State to make directed revisions to schemes after 
consultation. Such revisions become part of the scheme from the date of the direction. 

 
1.5 Delegation of powers to the head teacher 

 

The governing body of a school is required to consider the extent to which it wishes 

to delegate its financial powers to the head teacher, and to record its decision (and 

any revisions) in the minutes of the governing body. 

 

The first formal budget plan of each financial year must be approved by the 

governing body, or by a committee of the governing body. 

 

1.7 Maintenance of schools 

 

NNC is responsible for maintaining the schools covered by the scheme, and this 

includes the duty of defraying all the expenses of maintaining them, (except in the 

case of a voluntary aided school where some of the expenses are, by statute, payable 

by the governing).  Part of the way NNC maintains schools is through the funding 

system put in place under sections 45 to 53 of the SSAF Act 1998. 

 

SECTION 2:  FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 

2.1 Application of financial controls to schools 

 

The Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) has responsibility for administering 

the financial arrangements of the North Northamptonshire Council, including the 

financial affairs of schools.  In the management of their delegated budgets schools 
must therefore abide by the Chief Finance Officer’s requirements on financial control 

and monitoring as detailed in this Scheme for Financing Schools. 

 

2.2  Provision of financial information and reports 

 

Schools are required to provide NNC with details of anticipated expenditure and 

income through the completion of a budget proposal form at the start of each 

Page 14



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

financial year.  Details of actual expenditure and income should be provided through 

the submission of a quarterly return.  However, while NNC cannot require schools to 

submit a monthly return, except those connected with tax or banking reconciliations, 

we encourage them to do so. 

These returns should be reconciled to the school’s local financial system by the 

school concerned and will be input to the central accounting system by NNC staff to 

form part of the statutory accounts. 

 

The form for submission of information takes account of the consistent financial 
reporting framework and the desirability of compatibility with that framework.  
 
This is different from a requirement for annual budget plans. 

 

2.3  Payment of salaries; payment of bills 

 

Section 3 of the Schools Financial Management Handbook gives details of employee 

pay scales and on costs etc.  The requirements of those schools that opt to do their 

own payroll are also set out. 

 

2.4  Control of assets 

 

Each school is required to maintain an inventory of its moveable non-capital assets 

with a value of £1,000 or more. 

 

Schools are free to determine their own arrangements for keeping a register of 

individual assets worth less than £1,000. NNC encourages schools to register 

anything that is portable and attractive such as a camera. Schools should keep a 

register in some form. 

 

2.5  Accounting Policies (including year-end procedures) 

 

Schools are required to abide by the procedures issued by NNC as detailed below. 

Year-end procedures are separately issued by the end of February each year. 

 

2.6  Writing off of debts 

 

Governors are authorised to write off bad debts to the stipulated level of £10,000, 

and such decisions must be recorded in the minutes of the governing body. 

 

2.7  Disputes regarding NNC invoices above £10,000 

 

If agreement cannot be reached between the school and NNC within 90 days of the 

charge being raised, the matter will be referred to the NNC Chief Finance Officer for 

resolution through the Chair and Deputy Chair of North Northamptonshire Schools 

Forum. 

 

2.8 Basis of Accounting 

 Page 15



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

8 

 

Although schools’ internal systems may operate on a cash basis, NNC’s requires 

report and accounts furnished to NNC be on an accruals basis, with income and 

expenditure accounted for in the year in which it arises, by the creation of debtors 

and creditors. 

 

NNC will not dictate to schools how they organise their accounts. This means in 
particular that schools should be able to use what financial software they wish, 
provided they meet any costs of modification to provide output required by NNC. 

 

2.9 Submission of budget plans 

 

Each maintained school is required to submit a budget plan every year, which takes 

account of the major categories of expenditure and income, on the NNC Budget 

Proposal Form.  Schools should, when constructing their annual budget plan take 

into account their estimated carry forward deficit/surplus balance as at the previous 

31st March. 

 

NNC will supply schools with all school income and expenditure data which it holds 
which is necessary for efficient planning by schools, and supply schools with an annual 
statement showing when this information will be available at times through the year. 
This is currently on the forms webpage in the “forms and notifications guide”. 
 
Schools are allowed to take full account of estimated deficits and surpluses at the 
previous 31 March in their budget plan. 

 
The budget proposal form for submission of budget plans should take account of the 
consistent financial reporting framework and the desirability of compatibility with that. 

 
The school’s formal annual budget plan must be approved by the Governing Body or 

a committee of the governing body. Any changes to this i.e. virements of budget 

during the year should also be approved by the Governing Body or committee. 

 

The date for the initial submission of the budget proposal plan is the 1st Friday in May. 
 

2.10 Submission of Financial Forecasts 

 

Schools are required to submit a 3-year budget forecast each year along with the 

budget proposal using that submission date as a guideline. 

 

NNC will use the 3 year plan to confirm schools are undertaking effective financial 

planning and may be used in NNCs assessment of schools financial value standards or 

used in support of NNCs balance control mechanism. 

 

2.11 School resource management 

 

Page 16



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

Schools must seek to achieve effective management of resources and value for money, 
to optimise the use of their resources and to invest in teaching and learning, taking 
into account the local authority’s purchasing, tendering and contracting requirements. 

 
It is for heads and governors to determine at school level how to optimise the use of 
resources and maximise value for money. 

 
There are significant variations in the effective management of resources between 
similar schools, and so it is important for schools to review their current expenditure, 
compare it to other schools and think about how to make improvements. 

 

2.12 Virements 

 

Schools may vire freely between budgets heads (codes) in the expenditure of their 

budget shares.  In order to reflect this on the central accounting system, schools will 

need to complete a standard NNC virement template which is to be submitted to 

NNC Schools Finance. 

  

Schools should ensure that virements are carried out in a timely manner to avoid 

budget headings becoming overspent. 

 

2.13 Audit: General 

 

All schools are within the remit of NNC Internal Audit who will periodically review 

the frequency of audit visits in the light of risk assessment.  Currently all maintained 

primary, nursery and special schools form part of a thematic audit process. 

 

There is a requirement to provide access to the school premises and records, and to 

provide such explanations as are deemed necessary.   The resulting report will be 

issued to the Chair of Governors, the Head teacher and NNC. 

 

Where matters of concern are identified, the NNC Chief Finance Officer may initiate 

a follow-up audit to report on progress in addressing these concerns.   

A persistent or deliberate refusal, or inability, to satisfactorily address points raised 

in this way may lead to withdrawal of delegation. 

  

Schools also fall within the North Northamptonshire Council external audit regime 

determined by the Government, and are required to co-operate with it and provide 

access to school records as required. 

 

2.14 Separate external audits 

 

Governing bodies may if they wish spend funds from their budget share to obtain 

external audit certification of their official accounts, separate from any North 

Northamptonshire Council internal or external audit process.  However, any external 

audit commissioned by the school would have to take into account the status of the 

school as a spender of NNC funds and the fact that it must follow North 

Northamptonshire Council procedures. 

Page 17



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

10 

 

 

2.15 Audit of voluntary and private funds 

 

Voluntary and private funds, and trading organisations controlled by the school are 

to be audited on an annual basis.  Audit Certificates should be retained in the school 

and be made available during school audits or upon request.  

 

The purpose of such a provision is to allow NNC to satisfy itself that the public funds 

are not being misused. A school refusing to provide audit certificates to NNC when 

required is in breach of the scheme and NNC can take action on that basis. 

 

2.16 Register of business interests 

 

The governing body of each school must hold a register which lists for each member 

of the governing body and the head teacher: 

 any business interests they or any member of their immediate family may 

have. 

 details of any other educational establishments that they govern 

 any relationships between school staff any members of the governing body 

This register must be kept up to date through notification of changes and through 

annual review of entries.  The register must be available for inspection by governors, 

staff, parents and NNC. 

 

2.17 Fraud 

 

All schools must have a robust system of controls to safeguard themselves against 

fraudulent or improper use of public money and assets. The governing body and 

head teacher must inform all staff of school policies and procedures relating to fraud 

and theft, the controls in place to prevent them and the consequences of breaching 

these controls.  This information Must also be included in the induction of new 

school staff and governors. 

 

2.18 Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) 

 

All local authority maintained schools (including nursery schools and special schools 

that have a delegated budget) must demonstrate compliance with the Schools 

Financial Value Standard (SFVS) and complete the assessment form on an annual 

basis.  It is for the school to determine at what time in the year they wish to complete 

the form but must submit the form to the local authority as per the Government 
guidance (normally 31st March). 

 

Governors must demonstrate compliance through the submission of the SFVS 

assessment form signed by the Chair of Governors.  The form must include a summary 

of remedial actions, where relevant, with a clear timetable to ensure that each action 

has a specified deadline and an agreed owner.  Governors must monitor the progress 

of these actions to ensure that all actions are cleared within specified deadlines. 

Page 18



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

 

 

2.19 Purchasing, tendering and contracting arrangements 

 

Schools are required to abide by NNC financial regulations and standing orders in 

purchasing, tendering and contracting matters.  This includes a requirement to 

assess in advance, where relevant, the health and safety competence of contractors, 

taking account of NNC policies and procedures. 

 

NNC policies and procedures cannot, however, require schools to: 

 

 do anything incompatible with any of the provisions of the scheme, or any statutory 

provision, or any EU Procurement Directive. 

 seek NNC officer countersignature for any contracts for goods or services for a value 

below £60,000 in any one year. 

 select suppliers only from an approved list. 

 seek fewer than three tenders in respect of any contract with a value exceeding 

£10,000 in any one year. 

 

For the purposes of the procurement directives schools are viewed as discrete contracting 
local authorities. 
 
Schools may seek advice on a range of compliantly procured deals via Buying for schools. 
 

2.20 Application of contracts to schools 

 

Schools have the right to opt out of NNC arranged contracts. 

 

Although governing bodies are empowered under paragraph 3 of schedule 1 to the 
Education Act 2002 to enter into contracts, in most cases they do so on behalf of the 
authority as maintainer of the school and the owner of the funds in the budget share 
(this is the main reason for allowing authorities to require authority counter-signature 
of contracts exceeding a certain value). 
 

Other contracts may be made solely on behalf of the governing body, when the 

governing body has clear statutory obligations – for example, contracts made by 

aided or foundation schools for the employment of staff. 

 

2.21 Central funds and earmarking 

 

NNC is authorised to make sums available to schools from central funds.  In certain 

instances, (e.g. Pupil Growth Fund) these allocations become part of the sum 

delegated to the school.  In other instances, the allocation may be considered to be 

earmarked funding and may only be spent on prescribed budget heads - in this event 

virement into a non-earmarked area of the budget is not permissible. 

 

Schools are able to demonstrate that this requirement has been complied with 

through the use of specific expenditure codes.  In certain instances, earmarked funds 

Page 19

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/buying-for-schools


   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

12 

 

must be returned to NNC if not spent in-year or within the period over which schools 

are allowed to use the funding. 

 

2.22 Spending for the purposes of the school 

 

Under s50 (3) of the SSAF Act governing bodies are allowed to spend budget shares 

for the purposes of the school.  There are no NNC restrictions on this provision. 

 

By virtue of section 50(3A) (which came into force on 1st April 2011), amounts spent 

by governing bodies on community facilities or services under section 27 of the 

Education Act 2002 will be treated as  if spent for any purposes of the school. 

 

Under section 50(3)(b) the Secretary of State may prescribe additional purposes for 
which expenditure of the budget share may occur. They have done so in the School 
Budget Shares (Prescribed Purposes)(England) Regulations 2002 (SI 2002/378), which 
have been amended by the School Budget Shares (Prescribed purposes) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/190). 
 
These allow schools to spend their budgets on pupils who are on the roll of other 
maintained schools or academies. 

  

2.23 Capital spending from budget shares 

 

Governing bodies may use their budget shares to meet the cost of capital 

expenditure on school premises.  This includes expenditure by the governing body of 

a voluntary aided school on work which is their responsibility under paragraph 3 of 

Schedule 3 of the SSAF Act 1998.  NNC requires any capital spending from budget 

shares to be recorded on specific expenditure codes. 

 

Where capital expenditure from the budget share exceeds £15,000 the governing 

body will be required to take into account any advice from the LA as to the merits of 

the proposed expenditure.  If the premises are owned by NNC, or the school has 

voluntary controlled status, then the governing body should seek the consent of NNC 

to any proposed works, but such consent can be withheld only on health and safety 

grounds. 

 

The reason for these provisions is to help meet responsibilities with the School 
Premises (England) Regulations 2012, the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) 
Regulations 1992, the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, the Equality Act 
2010, and the Building Regulations 2010. 

 
These provisions would not affect expenditure from any capital allocation made 
available by the local authority outside the delegated budget share. 

 

2.24 Notice of Concern 

 

Page 20



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

The LA may issue a notice of concern to the governing body of any school it 

maintains where, in the opinion of the NNC Chief Finance Officer and the Director 

responsible for Childrens Services, the school has failed to comply with any 

provisions of the scheme, or where actions need to be taken to safeguard the 

financial position of the local authority or the school. 

 

Such a notice will set out the reasons and evidence for it being made and may place 

on the governing body restrictions, limitations or prohibitions in relation to the 

management of funds delegated to it. 

 

These may include: 

 

 insisting that relevant staff undertake appropriate training to address any identified 

weaknesses in the financial management of the school; 

 

 insisting that an appropriately trained/qualified person chairs the finance 

committee of the governing body; 

 

 placing more stringent restrictions or conditions on the day to day financial 

management of a school than the scheme requires for all schools – such as the 

provision of monthly accounts to the local authority; 

 

 insisting on regular financial monitoring meetings at the school attended by local 

authority officers; 

 

 requiring a governing body to buy into a local authority’s financial management 

systems; and 

 

 imposing restrictions or limitations on the manner in which a school manages 

extended school activity funded from within its delegated budget share – for 

example by requiring a school to submit income projections and/or financial 

monitoring reports on such activities. 

 

The notice will clearly state what these requirements are and the way in which and 

the time by which such requirements must be complied with in order for the notice 

to be withdrawn.  It will also state the actions that the authority may take where the 

governing body does not comply with the notice. 

 

SECTION 3:  INSTALMENTS OF THE BUDGET SHARE;   

BANKING ARRANGEMENTS 

 

For the purposes of this section, Budget Share includes any place led funding for special 

schools or pupil referral units. 

 

3.1  Frequency of instalments 

 

The budget share will be divided into 12 Monthly payments: 

 Page 21



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

14 

 

April 12% of the Budget share will be paid 

May-March 8% of the budget share will be paid 

 

All LGSS Payroll schools will have their salary cost deducted a month in arrears. 

 

All monthly top up payments for indicative budget will be made on a monthly basis 

unless alternative arrangements have been agreed with the provider. 

 

3.2 Own Payroll Schools 

 

Own payroll schools monthly advances will in paid in accordance with their confirmed 

pay dates sent annually to NNC School Finance. 

 

3.3  Interest Clawback  

 

Schools that have their pay budgets advanced to their local bank account will be 

charged interest on the amount of NI, and tax between the West Northamptonshire 

Council payroll date and the date that payments would have been made by the West 

Northamptonshire Council  to the respective bodies. 

 

Interest will be calculated on a daily basis using the average short term investment 

rate i.e. 

 

(a) x (b) / 365 x (c) 

 

where 

 

(a) = the Bank of England base rate, (e.g. 0.1% for 2021) 

 

(b) = number of days between West Northamptonshire Council pay date and 

the date on which the West Northamptonshire Council  would have paid 

contributions for tax and NI to the Inland Revenue and DSS 

 

(c) = the school’s contributions for tax and NI. 

 

Interest will be calculated and charged once per annum based on the figures for 

September x twelve months.  Schools will be invoiced in November and charged 

seven months in arrears, five months in advance. 

 

Also, if schools request to have their advance to their local bank account prior to the 

date on which their staff would have paid as part of the West Northamptonshire 

Council ’s payroll for school-based staff then interest will be charged on the pay 

budget part of the advance. 

 

Interest will be calculated on a daily basis using the average short term investment 

rate, i.e. 

Page 22



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

  

(a)  x (b) / 365 x (c)  +  (a) x (d) / 365 x (e)  +  (a) x (f) / 365 x (g) 

 

where 

 

(a) = the Bank of England base rate, (e.g. 0.1% for 2020) 

 

(b) = number of days between the advance and North Northamptonshire 

Council pay date. 

 

(c) = total amount of budget advanced for salaries and travel that month 

i.e. 1/13th of the annual pay and travel budget. 

 

Interest will be calculated and charged once per annum based on the figures for 

September x twelve months.  Schools will be invoiced in November and charged 

seven months in arrears, five months in advance. 

 

3.4  Interest on late budget share payments 

 

If the payments to the bank accounts are delayed due to a fault in the administrative 

systems for processing the advances to the school’s bank account, the school will 

receive interest as follows: 

 

Interest will be calculated on a daily basis using the average short term investment 

rate, i.e. 

 

(a) x (b) / 365 x (c) 

 

where 

 

(a) = the Bank of England base rate, (e.g. 0.1% for 2021) 

 

(b) = number of days between the date the advance was made and the date 

it should have been made by the North Northamptonshire Council  

 

(c) = the amount of the advance 

 

3.5  Bank and building society accounts 

 

All schools should operate a local bank account into which their budget share 

instalments are paid.  It will also be possible to have a linked deposit account, with all 

transfers to and from the linked deposit account being made via the local bank 

account.  Interest earned on these accounts is retained by the school. 

 

The financial regulations pertaining to the local bank account scheme, and guidance 

notes on the administration of local bank accounts, are contained within the Section 

2 of the Financial Management Handbook. 

 Page 23



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

16 

 

3.6  Restrictions on accounts 

  

NNC operates a pooling arrangement through its own bankers.  Schools who do not 

wish to take advantage of this may choose to hold an account for the purpose of 

receiving budget share payments with any UK bank or building society approved by 

NNC.  

 

All school accounts (excluding the school fund) must have “North Northamptonshire 

Council ” or ‘NNC’ in their title in addition to the school name.  This provision allows 

bankers and auditors to distinguish between public and private funds, and will 

ensure that there is no inadvertent disclosure of information if the external auditors 

legitimately approach a school’s bank for details of the public funds bank account. 

 

A minimum of two cheque signatories are required for the local bank account; 

however, these do not have to be NNC employees. 

 

Schools are permitted to use direct debits, standing orders and BACs payment 

facilities where required provided the rules contained in financial regulations are 

adhered to. 

 

Schools are encouraged to make use of credit cards as these provide a useful means 

of facilitating electronic purchases. 

  

3.7  Borrowing by schools 

 

School governing bodies may only borrow money with the written permission of the 

NNC Chief Finance Officer and the Secretary of State. This requirement does not 

extend to monies lent to schools by NNC i.e. under the Asset Loan Scheme. 

 

This restriction does not apply to Trustees and Foundations, whose borrowing, as 

private bodies, makes no impact on Government accounts.  However, these debts may 

not be serviced directly from the delegated budget. 

 

3.8  Use of School Balances 

 

The Asset Loan Scheme utilises the combined bank balances of schools. 

 

In addition, NNC may borrow from these balances to support projects which benefit 

children and young people in the County – detailed criteria will be agreed in advance 

with the West Northamptonshire Schools Forum. 

  

Page 24



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

SECTION 4:  THE TREATMENT OF SURPLUS AND DEFICIT BALANCES ARISING IN 

RELATION TO BUDGET SHARES 
 

4.1  The right to carry forward surplus balances 

 

Schools may carry forward from one financial year to the next any shortfall in 

expenditure relative to the school’s budget share for the year plus/minus any 

balance brought forward from the previous year. 

 

4.2  Controls on surplus balances 

 

Surplus balances held by schools as permitted under this scheme are subject to the 

following restrictions: 

 

(1) the Authority shall calculate by 31 May each year the surplus balance, if any, 

held by each school as at the preceding 31 March. For this purpose, the 

balance will be the recurrent balance as defined in the Consistent Financial 

Reporting Framework; 

 

(2) the Authority shall deduct from the calculated balance any amounts for which 

the school has a prior year commitment to pay from the surplus balance; 

 

(3) the Authority shall then deduct from the resulting sum any amounts which 

the governing body of the school has declared to be assigned for specific 

purposes permitted by the authority, and which the authority is satisfied are 

properly assigned. To count as properly assigned, amounts must not be 

retained beyond the period stipulated for the purpose in question, without 

the consent of the Authority. In considering whether any sums are properly 

assigned the Authority may also take into account any previously declared 

assignment of such sums but may not take any change in planned 

assignments to be the sole reason for considering that a sum is not properly 

assigned. 

 

(4) if the result of steps (1) – (3) is a sum greater than 10% of the current year’s 

budget share for primary, nursery and special schools, then the Authority 

shall deduct from the current year’s budget share an amount equal to the 

excess. 

 

Funds deriving from sources other than the Authority will be taken into account in 

this calculation if paid into the budget share account of the school, whether under 

provisions in this scheme or otherwise. 

 

Funds held in relation to a school’s exercise of powers under s.27 of the Education 

Act 2002 (community facilities) will not be taken into account unless added to the 

budget share surplus by the school as permitted by the Authority.  

 

The total of any amounts deducted from schools’ budget shares by the Authority 

under this provision are to be applied to the Schools Budget of the Authority. Page 25



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

18 

 

  

Schools will be required to split these balances for the DfE Section 251 return and for 

Consistent Financial Reporting both of which are statutory returns. 

 

4.3  Interest on surplus balances 

 

Schools will not be paid interest on any unspent centrally-held year-end balances.  

However, in so far as schools hold their unspent balances within a local school bank 

account, they may receive interest on the balance held within that account. 

 

4.4  Obligation to carry forward deficit balances 

 

Schools must carry forward from one financial year to the next any shortfall in school 

budget share relative to their expenditure for the year plus/minus any balance 

brought forward from the previous year.  This will be affected through a deduction 

from the following year’s budget share. 

 

4.5  Planning for deficit budgets 

 

It is not permissible for schools to budget for a deficit, except in those circumstances 

set out below.  School budget plans must be prepared with a view to breaking even 

or creating a surplus at the end of the financial year. 

 

Where schools have reason to anticipate a deficit the NNC Chief Finance Officer must 

be informed immediately. 

 

4.6  Charging of interest on deficit balances 

 

Schools will not be charged interest on any unplanned year end deficits as a matter 

of course.  However, where an unplanned overdraft occurs on a school’s local bank 

account, although NNC will underwrite such an overdraft, the school’s budget will be 

charged any interest or other costs that arise. 

 

4.7  Writing off deficits 

 

NNC cannot write off the deficit balance of any school. 

  

4.8  Balances of closing and replacement schools 

 

When a school closes, any balances (whether surplus or deficit) reverts to the LA; it 

cannot be transferred as a balance to any other school, even where the school is a 

successor to the closing school, except that a surplus transfers to an academy where 

the school converts to academy status under section 4(1) (a) of the Academies Act 

2010. 

  

Page 26



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

4.9  Licensed deficits 

 

Schools must submit a recovery plan to NNC when their revenue deficit rises above 

1% at 31 March of any year. A school may be allowed to plan for a deficit budget in 

exceptional circumstances with the agreement of the NNC Chief Finance Officer and 

subject to the following restrictions: 

 

(1) The maximum length over which a school may repay the deficit is normally 

three years from the beginning of the next financial year in which the deficit 

arises, and the financial position will be subject to ongoing monitoring and 

annual review. 

 

(2) A deficit arrangement will only be allowed where the continuing existence of 

a school is deemed viable. 

 

(3) The minimum size of an agreed deficit is 1% of the budget share, and the 

maximum level is 15% of the budget share. 

 

(4) The maximum proportion of the collective school balances held by NNC which 

will be used to back the total of deficit arrangements is 10%. 

 

(5) Arrangements for individual schools will be determined by the NNC Chief 

Finance Officer or their nominated officers, in agreement with the school 

Governing Body.  The Governing Body must formally agree to abide by any 

requirements laid down as a pre-condition to accepting the deficit 

arrangement. 

 

4.10  Asset Purchase (Loan) Scheme 

  

NNC operates an Asset Purchase (Loan) Scheme details of which are available on a 

separate asset loans webpage in the schools web area. 

 

 

SECTION 5:  INCOME 

 

5.1  Income from lettings 
 

Schools may retain income from lettings of the school premises subject to alternative 

provisions arising from any joint use or PFI agreements.  Schools are permitted to 

cross-subsidize lettings for community and voluntary use with income from other 

lettings, provided the governing body is satisfied that this will not interfere to a 

significant extent with the performance of any duties imposed on them by the 

Education Acts, including the requirement to conduct the school with a view to 

promoting high standards of educational achievement. 

  

Schools must, however, have regard to the directions issued by NNC as to the use of 

school premises, as permitted under the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 

for various categories of schools. Page 27

https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/children-families-education/schools-and-education/information-for-school-staff/schools-finance-and-budgeting/Pages/asset-loans.aspx


   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

20 

 

 

Income from lettings of school premises should not normally be payable into 

voluntary or private funds held by the school. 

 

5.2  Income from fees and charges 

 

Schools may retain all income from fees and charges, except where a service is 

provided by NNC from centrally retained funds.  However, schools are required to 

have regard to NNC policy statements on charging. 

 

5.3  Income from fund-raising activities 

 

Schools may retain income from fund-raising activities. 

 

5.4  Income from the sale of assets 

 

Schools may retain the proceeds from the sale of assets, except in cases where the 

asset was purchased with non-delegated funds, or the asset concerned is land or 

buildings forming part of the school premises and is owned by NNC. 

 

5.5  Administrative procedures for the collection of income 

 

The collection of income, and relevant VAT guidance, are detailed in Sections 8 and 5 

of the Financial Management Handbook. 

  

5.6  Purposes for which income may be used  

 

Income from the sale of assets purchased with delegated funds may only be spent 

for the purposes of the school. 

 

SECTION 6:  THE CHARGING OF SCHOOL BUDGET SHARES 
 

6.1  General provision 

 

With the exception of school-based staff salary, apprentice levy and travel costs, the 

budget share of a school may only be charged by NNC without the consent of the 

Governing Body in those circumstances set out in 6.3 below.  Even then NNC is 

required to consult with the school as to the intention to so charge, and must notify 

the school when the charge has been made. 

  

6.2  Basis of charges 

 

Salaries (including Apprentice levy) and travel costs of school-based staff will be 

charged to schools at actual cost.  Where schools opt to be part of the LGSS Payroll 

scheme for administering and charging the costs of supply teachers, these charges 

will be made at actual cost. 

Page 28



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

 

6.3  De-Delegation 

 

NNC may de-delegate funding for permitted services without the express permission 

of the governing body, provided this has been approved by the appropriate phase 

representatives of the Schools Forum. 

 

6.4  Circumstances in which charges may be made: 

 

(1) Where premature retirement costs have been incurred without the prior 

written agreement of NNC to bear such costs, (the amount chargeable being 

only the excess over any amount agreed by NNC). 

 

(2) Other expenditure incurred to secure resignations where the school has not 

followed NNC advice. 

 

(3) Awards by courts and industrial tribunals against NNC, or out of court 

settlements arising from action or inaction by the governing body contrary to 

NNC advice. 

 

(4) Expenditure by NNC in carrying out health and safety work, or capital 

expenditure for which NNC is liable, where funds have been delegated to the 

governing body for such work, but the governing body has failed to carry out 

the required work. 

 

(5) Expenditure by NNC incurred in making good defects in building work funded 

by capital spending from budget shares, where the premises are owned by NNC 

or the school has voluntary controlled status. 

 

(6) Expenditure incurred by NNC in insuring its own interests in a school where 

funding has been delegated but the school has failed to demonstrate that it has 

arranged cover at least as good as that which  would be arranged by NNC. 

 

(7) Recovery of monies due from a school for unpaid invoices which have been 

referred to the disputes procedure set out in Section 2.1.7 of this Scheme. 

 

(8) Recovery of penalties imposed on NNC by the Board of Inland Revenue, the 

Contributions Agency, HM Customs and Excise, Teachers Pensions, the 

Environmental Agency or other regulatory authorities as a result of school 

negligence. 

  

(9) Correction of NNC errors in calculating charges to a budget share (e.g. pensions 

deductions). 

 

(10) Additional transport costs incurred by NNC arising from decisions by the 

governing body on the length of the school day, and failure to notify NNC of 

non-pupil days resulting in unnecessary transport  costs. 

 Page 29



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

22 

 

(11) Legal costs which are incurred by NNC because the governing body did not 

accept the advice of NNC. 

 

(12) Costs of necessary health and safety training for staff employed by NNC, where 

funding for training has been delegated but the necessary training not carried 

out. 

 

(13) Compensation paid to a lender where a school enters into a contract for 

borrowing beyond its legal powers, and the contract is of no effect. 

 

(14) Cost of work done in respect of teacher pension remittance and records for 

schools using non-LGSS Payroll contractors, the charge to be the minimum 

needed to meet the cost of NNC compliance with its statutory obligations. 

 

(15) Costs incurred by NNC in securing provision specified in a statement of SEN 

where the Governing Body of a school fails to secure such provision despite the 

delegation of funds in respect of low cost high incidence SEN and/or specific 

funding for a pupil with High Needs.  

 

(16) Costs incurred by NNC due to submission by the school of incorrect data.  

 

(17) Recovery of amounts spent by the school from specific grants on ineligible 

purposes. 

 

(18) Costs incurred by NNC as a result of the Governing Body being in breach of the 

terms of a contract. 

 

(19) Costs incurred by NNC or another school as a result of a school withdrawing 

from a cluster arrangement, for example where this has funded staff providing 

services across the cluster. 

 

(20) Recovery of monies due for unpaid invoices from a school which is due to 

convert to academy status. 

 

SECTION 7: TAXATION 
 

7.1  Value Added Tax 

  

NNC is able to reclaim VAT on schools expenditure relating to non-business activity, 

and to pass amounts so reclaimed back to the school.  This does not include 

expenditure by the governors of a voluntary aided school when carrying out their 

statutory responsibilities to maintain the external fabric of their buildings. 

 

Detailed guidance on VAT, and procedures for reclaiming it, are set out in Sections 5 

and 8 of the Schools Financial Management Handbook. 

 

Page 30



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

7.2  Construction Industry Scheme (CIS) 

 

Schools are required to abide by NNC procedures in connection with CIS.  These are 

set out in the Section 4 of the Schools Financial Management Handbook. 

 

SECTION 8:  THE PROVISION OF SERVICES AND FACILITIES BY  

THE AUTHORITY 
 

8.1  Provision of services from centrally retained budgets 

 

NNC will determine on what basis services from centrally retained funds, (including 

existing PRC and redundancy), will be provided to schools. 

 

NNC will not be able to discriminate in its provision of services on the basis of 

categories of schools except where discrimination is justified by differences in 
statutory duties. 

 

8.2  Provision of services bought back from NNC using delegated budgets 

 

The term of any arrangement with a school to buy services or facilities from NNC is 

limited to a maximum of three years from the date of the agreement and periods 

not exceeding five years for any subsequent agreement for the same services. 

 

8.3  Packaging 

 

Where funding has been delegated, and NNC is offering a service on a buyback basis, 

it must provide that service in a way which does not unreasonably restrict schools’ 

freedom of choice among the services available.  Where practical, services will be 

provided on a service-by-service basis as well as in packages.  

This provision would not prevent NNC offering packages of services which offer a 

discount to schools taking up a wider range of services but NNC is encouraged to 

offer services singly as well as in combination. 

 

8.4  Charging 

 

Where NNC provides services on an ‘ad hoc’ basis, they may be charged for at a 

different rate than if provided on the basis of an extended agreement.  This excludes 

centrally arranged premise and liability insurance. 

 

8.5 Service level agreements 

 

Information on the services which will be offered for schools to purchase will aim to 

be provided by 28th February each year, and schools will have at least a month to 

consider the terms of agreements. 

 

If services or facilities are provided under a service level agreement - whether  

centrally funded or on a buyback basis - the terms of any such agreement will  be 
reviewed at least every three years if the agreement lasts longer than that. Page 31



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

24 

 

 

All services offered by NNC will also be made available on a basis which is not related 

to an extended agreement, although where services are provided on an ad hoc basis 

they may be charged for at a different rate than if provided on the basis of an 

extended agreement. 

 

Where services are provided on an ad hoc basis they may be charged for at a 

different rate than if provided on the basis of an extended agreement. 

 

8.6  Teachers’ Pensions 

 

In order to ensure that the performance of the duty on the Authority to supply  

Teachers Pensions with information under the Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 1997, 

the following conditions are imposed on NNC and governing bodies of all maintained 

schools covered by this Scheme in relation to their budget shares. 

 

The conditions only apply to governing bodies of maintained schools that have not 

entered into an arrangement with NNC to provide payroll services. 

 

A governing body of any maintained school, whether or not the employer of the 

teachers at such a school, which has entered into any arrangement or agreement 

with a person other than NNC to provide payroll services, shall ensure that any such 

arrangement or agreement is varied to require that person to supply salary, service 

and pensions data to NNC which NNC requires to submit its annual return of salary 

and service to Teachers’ Pensions and to produce its audited contributions 

certificate.  NNC will advise schools each year of the timing, format and specification 

of the information required. A governing body shall also ensure that any such 

arrangement or agreement is varied to require that Additional Voluntary 

Contributions (AVCs) are passed to the Authority within the time limit specified in 

the AVC scheme. The governing body shall meet any consequential costs from the 

school’s budget share. 

 

A governing body of any maintained school which directly administers its payroll 

shall supply salary, service and pensions data to NNC which the  

Authority requires to submit its annual return of salary and service to  

Teachers’ Pensions and to produce its audited contributions certificate.  The 

Authority will advise schools each year of the timing, format and specification of the 

information required from each school. A governing body shall also ensure that 

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) are passed to the Authority within the 

time limit specified in the AVC scheme. The governing body shall meet any 

consequential costs from the school’s budget share. 

 

SECTION 9:  PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE (PFI) 

 

9.1 Charges will be made in accordance with the agreement with each school. 

 

Page 32



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

SECTION 10:  INSURANCE 
 

10.1  Insurance cover 

 

As funds for insurance are delegated to schools, NNC requires that schools 

demonstrate that cover relevant to NNC insurable interests, under a policy arranged 

by the governing body, is at least as good as the relevant minimum cover required to 

be arranged by the school by the NNC Chief Finance Officer. 

 

In assessing the relevant risks NNC will have regard to the actual risks which might 

reasonably be expected to arise at the school in question in operating such a 

requirement, rather than applying an arbitrary minimum level of cover for all 

schools. Instead of taking out insurance, a school may join the Secretary of State’s 

Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA) for risks that are covered by the RPA. 

 

The scheme allows schools to join the RPA after 1 April 2020. Schools may do this 

individually when any insurance contract of which they are part of expires. All 

primary and secondary schools are eligible to join the RPA collectively by agreeing 

through the schools forum to de-delegate funding. 

 

Further details are contained in Section 9 of the Financial Management Handbook. 

 

SECTION 11:  MISCELLANEOUS 
 

11.1  Right of access to information 

 

Governing bodies are required to supply all financial and other information which 

might be reasonably required to enable NNC to satisfy itself as to the school’s 

management of its delegated budget share, or the use made of any central 

expenditure by NNC, (e.g. earmarked funds), on the school. 

 

11.2  Liability of governors 

 

As the governing body is a corporate body, and because of the terms of s50(7) of the 

SSAF Act, governors of maintained schools will not incur personal liability in the 

exercise of their power to spend the delegated budget share provided they act in good 

faith. 

 

11.3 Governor’s expenses 

 

Under schedule 11 of the SSAF Act 1998, only allowances in respect of purposes 

specified in regulations may be paid to governors from a school’s delegated budget 

share.  Payment of any other allowances is not permissible.  In addition, schools 

should not pay expenses which duplicate those paid by the Secretary of State to 

additional governors appointed by him to schools under special measures. 

 

The LA will also delegate funds to meet governor expenses to the governing body of 

a school yet to receive a delegated budget if necessary. Page 33



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

26 

 

 

11.4 Responsibility for legal costs 

 

Legal costs incurred by the governing body, although the responsibility of the NNC as 

part of the cost of maintaining the school, unless they relate to the statutory 

responsibility of voluntary aided school governors for buildings, may be charged to 

the school’s budget share unless the governing body acts in accordance with the 

advice of NNC (see section 6.3.12).  

 

Where there is a conflict of interest between NNC and the Governing Body, LGSS law 

will decline to act for the school, and the school must therefore purchase advice 

from a third party. 

 

11.5 Health and Safety 

 

In the management of the budget share, the governing body should have due regard 

to duties placed on NNC in relation to health and safety, and the NNC policy on 

health and safety matters. 

 

11.6 Right of attendance for NNC Chief Finance Officer 

 

Governing bodies are required to permit the NNC Chief Finance Officer or any officer 

of the authority nominated by the NNC Chief Finance Officer to attend meetings of 

the governing body at which any agenda items are relevant to the exercise of his or 

her responsibilities. 

 

11.7 SEN 

 

In spending their budget shares, schools should use their best endeavours to secure 

the appropriate level of SEN provision.  Where, in general terms, this is not being 

achieved, delegation may be suspended. 

 

11.8 ‘Whistle blowing’ 

 

Details of the procedures to be followed by persons working at a school or school 

governors who wish to complain about financial management or financial propriety 

at the school can also be found on the NNC website (Human Resources for Schools 

Handbook). 

 

11.9 Child Protection  

 

Child Protection is the responsibility of all Area Child Protection Committee (ACPC) 

member agencies and schools and Education Professionals have a significant role to 

play. All schools should follow agreed ACPC procedures and there is an expectation 

by NNC that they should be involved in any child protection case conferences or 

subsequent core groups if children are placed on the child protection register. 

Page 34



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

 

NNC does not provide any funding for this but does offer Designated Teacher Child 

Protection training and the ACPC provides a range of training on related issues for 

schools. 

 

11.10 Redundancy/Early Retirement Costs 

 

Charges of dismissal/resignation costs will be made to the delegated school budget 

where the school decided to offer more generous terms than the authority’s 

redundancy policy in which case the excess will be charged  to the school;   

 when the school otherwise acted outside the NNC’s redundancy policy and/or policy 

on fixed term contracts;   

 when the school chooses to restructure and intends to make staffing reductions 

which NNC does not believe are necessary to either set a balanced budget or to 

meet the conditions of a licensed deficit;   

 when the school is in a situation where staffing reductions arise from a deficit caused 

by factors within the school’s control; and  

in a situation where the school has excess surplus balances and no agreed plan to use 

these. 

 

Costs incurred by NNC in respect of the dismissal, or for the purpose of securing the 

resignation, of any member of the staff of a maintained school shall not be met from 

the school's budget share for any financial year except in so far as NNC has good 

reason for deducting those costs, or any part of those costs, from that share. 

 

For staff employed under the community facilities power, the costs of any early 

retirements or redundancies must be met by the governing body and can be funded 

from the school’s delegated budget if the governing body is satisfied that this will not 

interfere to a significant event with the performance of any duties imposed on them 

by the Education Acts. 

 

SECTION 12:  RESPONSIBILITY FOR REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 
 

12.1 School Responsibilities 

 

Schools will continue to be responsible for non-strategic repairs and maintenance, 

and will additionally be expected to finance from their budget: 

 

1. All day-to-day and planned maintenance such as repairing or re-covering 

roofs, replacing failed boilers, rewiring, renewing damaged or dilapidated fences, 

rebuilding unsafe or collapsed boundary or retaining walls, resurfacing playgrounds, 

etc. 

2. Ensuring that the building complies with various statutory regulations 

 with regard to fire, environmental issues, safety glazing, asbestos regulations, etc. 

3. Arranging, monitoring and logging the results of regular inspection and 

 servicing contracts in respect of, for example: 

 

boilers, pumps and ancillary equipment  Page 35



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

28 

 

gas installations  

fixed electrical wiring, including emergency lighting and fire alarms 

security installations water tanks 

 

Many of the above items, when carried out, must comply with legislation and 

statutory regulations such as: 

 

the Environmental Protection Act 1990  

the IEE Wiring Regulations 1991 the Workplace (Health Safety and 

Welfare) Regulations 1994 Construction (Design and Management) 

Regulations 1994 the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 

1994 

DfE Constructional Standards 1997 local 

water byelaws 

 

12.2  NNC has delegated responsibility for both revenue and capital expenditure.  NNC 

adheres to the definition of capital set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting. 

 

12.3  The NNC de minimis for expenditure from the school’s capital budget allocation is 

£2,000 – any expenditure below this level must be treated as revenue spend. 

 

12.4  For voluntary aided schools, the liability of the Authority for repairs and maintenance 

(albeit met by delegation of funds through the budget share) is the same as for other 

maintained schools, and no separate list of responsibilities is necessary for such 

schools.  However, eligibility for capital grant from the Secretary of State for capital 

works at voluntary aided schools depends on the de minimis limit applied by DfE to 

categorise such work, not the de minimis limit used by the Authority. 

  

SECTION 13:  COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
 

13.1 Community Facilities 

 

Schools which choose to exercise the power conferred by s.27 (1) of the Education 

Act 2002 to provide community facilities will be subject to a range of controls.  First, 

regulations made under s.28 (2), if made, can specify activities which may not be 

undertaken at all under the main enabling power. Secondly, the school is obliged to 

consult NNC and have regard to advice from the authority. Thirdly, the Secretary of 

State issues guidance to governing bodies about a range of issues connected with 

exercise of the power, and a school must have regard to that. 

 

However, under s.28(1), the main limitations and restrictions on the power will be 

those contained in the maintaining authority’s scheme for financing schools made 

under section 48 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 as amended by 

paragraph 2 of Schedule 3 to the Education Act 2002. This amendment extended the 

Page 36



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

coverage of schemes to include the exercise of the powers of governing bodies to 

provide community facilities. 

 

Schools are therefore subject to prohibitions, restrictions and limitations in the 

scheme for financing schools. 

 

This part of the scheme does not extend to Joint-use agreements; transfer of control 

agreements, or agreements between the authority and schools to secure the 

provision of adult and community learning. 

 

 

13.2 Requirement to seek LA advice 

 

Schools are required to seek NNC advice, so that schools and the NNC are aware of 

any potential financial or other operational liabilities.  NNC has adopted a formal 

procedure for considering schools’ proposals.  Schools will be required to submit a 

fully costed business case to NNC for consideration.  This will include: 

 

(1) Details of the facilities to be provided, in terms of its purpose, staffing and 

impact upon general school activities. 

 

(2) A risk assessment of the proposals. 

 

(3) A two year business plan detailing all income and expenditure. 

 

(4) What plans the governing body have to deal with any surpluses/deficits 

arising from undertaking the community facilities power. 

 

(5) Confirmation of the status of the provider (e.g. business, charitable 

organisation) 

 

This will ensure that both parties are aware of any issues that may arise prior to 

entering into any commitment of resources. 

  

This procedure seeks to include reasonable requirements as to timeliness and the 

amount of information which schools must supply in seeking NNC advice.  This 

procedure will be published to all schools and schools will be advised of any revisions 

which may from time to time, be necessary. 

 

13.3 Requirements relating to the provision of advice 

 

NNC is required to provide schools with advice within 6 weeks of being consulted, 

although NNC will seek to offer advice earlier, if at all possible.  Schools are required 

to inform NNC of any action taken following receipt of and consideration of NNC 

advice, within 4 weeks of receiving such advice. 

 

13.4 Funding agreements – authority powers 

 Page 37



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

30 

 

The provision of community facilities in many schools may be dependent on the 

conclusion of a funding agreement with a third party which will either be supplying 

funding, or supplying funding and taking part in the provision.  A very wide range of 

bodies and organisations are potentially involved. 

 

13.5  The Authority’s requirements in relation to funding agreements with third parties 

 

NNC requirements in relation to funding agreements with third parties (as opposed 

to funding agreements with the Authority itself) are that any such proposed 

agreement should be submitted to NNC for its comments; giving NNC at least 4 

weeks to allow adequate time to consider and respond. 

 

The scheme may not impose a right of veto for NNC on such agreements, either 

directly or through requiring a right to countersign the agreement.  If the third party 

requires NNC consent to the agreement for it to proceed, such a requirement and 

the method by which NNC consent is to be signified is a matter for that third party, 

not for the scheme. 

 

13.6  Agreements seriously prejudicial to the interests of the school or the Authority 

 

If an agreement has been or is to be concluded against the wishes of NNC, or has 

been concluded without informing NNC, which in the view of NNC is seriously 

prejudicial to the interests of the school or NNC, this may constitute grounds for 

suspension of the right to a delegated budget. 

 

13.7 Constraints on the exercise of the community facilities power 

 

Section 28 (of the Act) provides that the exercise of the community facilities power is 

subject to prohibitions, restrictions and limitations in the Scheme for Financing 

Schools. 

 

13.8 Property considerations 

 

In considering any proposals for the provision of community facilities, NNC will need 

to be satisfied regarding the use or change of use of buildings, access, fire and other 

safety aspects, restrictions on use (where covenants on use bar certain activities or 

limit the use of the building to educational use), provision of additional 

accommodation by third parties and the maintenance responsibilities and liabilities.  

NNC would seek, in consultation with the school, so far as is practicable, to work out 

a basis on which the proposed activity could go ahead. 

 

13.9 Projects with significant financial risk 

 

The scheme does not give a right of veto either to funding agreements with third 

parties, or for other proposed uses of the community facilities power.  However NNC 

may require that in a specific instance of use of the community facilities power by a 

Page 38



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

governing body, the governing body concerned shall make arrangements to protect 

the financial interests of NNC.  This could be achieved either by carrying out the 

activity concerned through the vehicle of a limited company formed for the purpose, 

or by obtaining indemnity insurance for risks associated with the project in question, 

as specified by NNC. 

 

13.10 Supply of financial information 

 

Schools which exercise the community facilities power will be required to provide 

NNC every six months at the end of March and September, with a summary 

statement, in a form determined by NNC.  This must show the income and 

expenditure for the school arising from the facilities in question for the previous six 

months and on an estimated basis, for the next six months. 

 

13.11 Provision of additional information – where there is cause for concern 

 

NNC may give notice to the school if it believes there to be cause for concern, as to 

the school’s management of the financial consequences of the exercise of the 

community facilities power, and may require such financial statements to be 

supplied every three months, at the end of June, September, December and March.  

If NNC sees fit, it may require the submission of a recovery plan for the activity in 

question. 

 

NNC requires such supplementary information in order to ensure that schools are 

not at financial risk. Schedule 3 of the Education Act 2002, Schedule 15, makes a 

provision that mismanagement of funds received for community facilities is a basis 

for suspension of the right to delegation of the budget share.  NNC will suspend the 

right to delegation, if necessary. 

 

13.12 Audit 

  

The school is required to grant access to the school’s records connected with 

exercise of the community facilities power, in order to facilitate internal and external 

audit of relevant income and expenditure. 

 

In concluding funding agreements with other persons pursuant to the exercise of the 

community facilities power, schools are required to ensure that such agreements 

contain adequate provision for access by NNC to the records and other property of 

those persons held on the school premises, or held elsewhere insofar as they relate 

to the activity in question.  This will enable NNC to satisfy itself as to the propriety of 

expenditure on the facilities in question. 

 

13.13 Retention of income 

 

Schools are permitted to retain all net income derived from community facilities 

except where otherwise agreed with a funding provider, whether that be NNC or 

some other person. 

 
Page 39



   NNC Scheme for Financing Schools 

32 

 

13.14 Community Facilities Balances  

 

Schools are also permitted to carry such retained income over from one financial 

year to the next as a separate community facilities surplus. 

 

Schools budget share balances will be split between several categories under the 

Consistent Financial Reporting Framework.  Where the community facilities are 

administered through the school’s budget these balances may include community 

facilities balances and schools will be asked to identify these. 

 

Where the school is not permitted to administer the community facility as part of the 

school budget share accounts, subject to the agreement of NNC at the end of each 
financial year, the school may transfer all or part of the community facilities balance to 
the budget share balance. 

 

13.15 Extension of Health and Safety provisions  

 

The health and safety provisions of the main scheme are extended to the community 

facilities power exercised by schools. 

 

13.16 Criminal Records Clearance 

 

The governing body is responsible for the costs of securing Criminal Records Bureau 

clearance for all adults involved in community activities taking place during the 

school day. Governing bodies would be free to pass on such costs to a funding 

partner as part of an agreement with that partner. 

 

13.17 School’s responsibility for insurance arrangements 

  

It is the responsibility of the governing body to ensure adequate arrangements are 

made for insurance against risks arising from the exercise of the community facilities 

power, taking professional advice as necessary.  Schools are required to seek NNC 

advice before finalising any insurance arrangement for community facilities. 

 

13.18 LA’s insurance responsibility 

 

NNC may undertake its own assessment of the insurance arrangements made by a 

school in respect of community facilities, and if it judges those arrangements to be 

inadequate, make arrangements itself and charge the resultant cost to the school.  

This is to protect NNC against possible third-party claims. 

 

Instead of taking out insurance, a school may join the RPA for risks that are covered 

by the RPA. 

 

13.19 VAT  

 

Page 40



   NCC Scheme for Financing Schools 

Schools may only make use of NNC VAT reclaim facility for expenditure on 

community facilities when this is from NNC funds and not expenditure from other 

funds. 

 

Where schools donate any surpluses arising from community facilities activities to 

the budget share and this is then used for educational purposes NNC VAT reclaim 

facility may be used.  The procedures to be followed are those set out within the VAT 

guidance issued to schools. 

 

13.20 School/LA employees – income tax and national insurance  

 

Any member of staff employed by the school or NNC in connection with community 

facilities at the school is paid from funds held in a school’s own bank account; the 

school is likely to be held liable for payment of income tax and National Insurance, in 

line with Inland Revenue rules. 

 

13.21 Construction Industry Scheme Tax advice 

 

Schools must follow NNC advice in relation to the Construction Industry Scheme 

where this is relevant to the exercise of the community facilities power. 

 

13.22 Banking Arrangements 

 

Under the Scheme for Financing Schools, schools are only permitted to have one 

current account and a linked deposit account.  Schools must therefore ensure that 

adequate internal accounting controls are maintained and there is a clear separation 

of funds if the community facilities are administered through the budget share 

accounts. 

The NNC Scheme for Financing Schools continues to apply in respect of banking 

arrangements for schools e.g. signing of cheques, the titles of bank accounts, the 

contents of bank account mandates, and similar matters. 

 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Sub Sub 

Total % Total % Description
2019-20 £m 2020-21 £m

CFR Ref £'M £'M

B03 Devolved Formula Capital Balance

BO3a
1.91 0.09

B05 Other Capital Balances

B05a e.g. Private Capital Income, Healthy child capital fund
0.20 0.69

TOTAL CAPITAL - SUB TOTAL
2.11

2.108 14.63%
0.78

0.779 9.51% Capital

B01 Committed Revenue Balance

B01a 0.80 0.07 0.073 Not apportioned as significantly reduced

B01b

0.23 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01c

0.39 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d

B01d(i)
0.51 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d(ii)
0.00 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d(iii)
0.01 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d(iv) 0.01 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d(v) 0.83 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d(vi) Year 7 Catch Up Grant 0.02 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01d(vii) 0.00 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01e

0.22 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01f

0.13 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01g

0.38 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01h

1.43 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01i  - 

school owes 

ESFA
0.06 0.000 See B01a, not apportioned

B01i  - ESFA 

owes 

Schools
-0.001

5.006 34.74% 0.073 0.89% Committed Revenue

B02 Uncommitted Revenue Balance 7.032 7.032 48.80% 7.640 7.640 93.24% Un Committed Revenue

B06 Extended School Balances 

B06a 0.020 -0.298

B06b 0.243

0.263 1.82% -0.298 -3.64% Extended Schools

GRAND TOTAL 14.411 14.410 8.195 8.195 TOTAL

MAINTAINED SCHOOLS BALANCES 2020-21

Where the balance relates to formula capital where a school is allowed to retain the balance for a 3 year period to enable the 

affordability of a capital project to be achieved (note includes capital expenditure on IT).

Where a revenue balance relates to earmarked external funding which has been received but not yet spent.

For Nursery Schools, 25% (subject to a maximum of £50,000) of their Early Years Single Funding Formula (allocation for 

2018-19).

Where a revenue balance relates to High Needs funding which applies to (or will be utilised in) the next financial year 

(subject to a maximum of 20% of the school 2018-19 Notional SEN budget and High Needs top ups).

PUPIL PREMIUM

Where a revenue balance relates to unspent Pupil Premium (subject to a maximum of the 2016-17 Pupil Premium Pupil Premium Deprivation (FSMever6)

Pupil Premium Service Child (SC)

Pupil Premium post-LAC (for children adopted from care or under a special guardianship order)

Pupil Premium Looked After Children (LAC)

PE Sports Grant

Summer School Grant

Where a primary school of 100 or fewer pupils due to changing circumstances and greater uncertainty needs to set aside 

an additional amount (maximum £20k and reasons to be specified)

Where a school has an arrangement under an area partnership to hold funds relating to that partnership for a number of 

schools.

Where revenue expenditure has been set aside for capital (including VA Governors 10% capital contributions).

Where revenue funding for repairs and maintenance (R&M) have been set aside for specific items or projects subject to 

evidence that use of the balance is included in the school Asset Management Plan (recommended maximum of double 

the 12-13 R&M formula allocation).

UIFSM revenue funding - balance owed to the ESFA as the school have received UIFSM funding based on previous 

uptake and actual uptake is BELOW this - enter PLUS FIGURE ONLY 

Nurseries DEFICITS and Children Centre 

likely MISPOSTING under management 

and reviews respectively

Where the balance relates to a surplus or deficit arising from Community Focused School activities – Other than 

Childrens’ Centres.

UIFSM revenue funding - balance owed by the ESFA as the school have received UIFSM funding based on previous 

uptake and actual uptake is ABOVE this - enter MINUS FIGURE ONLY 

Where the balance relates to a surplus or deficit arising from Community Focused School activities 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



List of NNC Maintained Schools

KEY

School 

Name/Establishment 

BLANK REPORTING

SFVS 

Return 

Rec'd

Reviewed
Ofsted

Rating
Reserves/balances as a 

percentage of total income KEY

1 Sch 1 Yes Yes Requires improvement Deficit in year balance of -8.9%

2 Sch 2 Yes Yes Good Deficit in year balance of -4.4%

1 Sch 3 Yes Yes Good

3 Sch 4 Yes Yes Good Deficit in year balance -5.7%

1 Sch 5 Yes Yes Good

2 Sch 6 Yes Yes Requires improvement

3 Sch 7 Yes Yes Outstanding

4 Sch 8 Yes Yes Requires improvement

2 Sch 9 Yes Yes Good

5 Sch 10 Yes Yes Good

6 Sch 11 Yes Yes Good

3 Sch 12 Yes Yes Good

7 Sch 13 Yes Yes Outstanding

8 Sch 14 Yes Yes Good

9 Sch 15 Yes Yes Good

10 Sch 16 Yes Yes Good

11 Sch 17 Yes Yes Good

4 Sch 18 Yes Yes Pending

12 Sch 19 Yes Yes Good

13 Sch 20 Yes Yes Good

4 Sch 21 Yes Yes Requires improvement

5 Sch 22 Yes Yes Requires improvement

6 Sch 23 Yes Yes Outstanding

7 Sch 24 Yes Yes Good

5 Sch 25 Yes Yes Good

14 Sch 26 Yes Yes Good

8 Sch 27 Yes Yes Outstanding

15 Sch 28 Yes Yes Good

16 Sch 29 Yes Yes Good

9 Sch 30 Yes Yes Outstanding

17 Sch 31 Yes Yes Outstanding

18 Sch 32 Yes Yes Good

6 Sch 33 Yes Yes Good

10 Sch 34 Yes Yes Good

7 Sch 35 Yes Yes Requires improvement

11 Sch 36 Yes Yes Good

12 Sch 37 Yes Yes Requires improvement

19 Sch 38 Yes Yes Good

13 Sch 39 Yes Yes Good

20 Sch 40 Yes Yes Good

16 Sch 41 Yes Yes Good

15 Sch 42 Yes Yes Good

KEY %

16.7%

47.6%

35.7%

In / Forecasting  Deficit 

Requires Improvement

Good

In / Forecasting  

Deficit 

Requires 

Improvement

Good

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



DSG Detailed Allocations

2021-22 Budget
Check to ESFA 

statement
HN to EY CSSB to HN SB to HN

After block 

movements 

Before 

Recoupment 

After block 

movements 

Before 

Recoupment 

Carry Forward 

pending CLT 

sign off

Recoupment

Current Budget   

After Recoupment 

(Excluding c-fwd)

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Schools 244,339,457 (1,121,826) 243,217,632 243,217,632 (194,452,834) 48,764,797

Early Years Provision 22,140,202 271,000 22,411,202 22,411,202 0 22,411,202

High Needs 44,692,999 (271,000) 183,000 1,121,826 45,726,825 45,726,825 (9,393,168) 36,333,657

Central Schools Service Block 3,908,081 (183,000) 3,725,081 3,725,081 0 3,725,081

DSG TOTAL 315,080,739 0 0 0 315,080,739 315,080,739 (203,846,002) 111,234,737

Schools Block Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Schools Budgets (DSG) 243,217,632 (194,452,834) 48,764,797
Redundancy/PRC - Schools de-delegated 14,522 14,522
Union Facilities (DSG) Schools de-delegated 22,441 22,441
School Improvement Group (DSG) de-delegated 72,608 72,608
Pupil Growth Fund

Total Schools 243,327,203 (194,452,834) 48,874,368

Central Schools Services Block Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Schools Forum (DSG) 11,300 11,300
School Admissions 484,500 484,500
Copyright 299,839 299,839

DSG grant and other costs (ESG services) 857,500 857,500

Teacher's Pay and Pension 5,000 5,000
Redundancy/PRC 994,085 994,085
School Standards & Effectiveness (Combined DSG LA Services) 433,879 433,879

Prevention & Early Help Operational - Parenting support  (Combined DSG LA Services) 34,367 34,367
Moderation  (Combined DSG LA Services) 15,000 15,000

Transport (Combined DSG LA Services) 215,189 215,189

Supervised Contact  (Combined DSG LA Services) 171,969 171,969

Northamptonshire Safeguarding Children Board (Combined DSG LA Services) 33,000 33,000

Pupil Growth Fund 700,000 700,000

Total Central Schools Services Block 4,255,627 4,255,627

Early Years Provision Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£ £ £ £

LSE - Early Years 785,000 785,000

3 & 4 Free Entitlement EYSFF 18,617,000 18,617,000

DSG - 2yr old Place Funding 2,182,000 2,182,000

Early Years - Inclusion Fund and DAF 827,000 827,000

Total Early Years Provision 22,411,000 22,411,000

High Needs Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£ £ £ £

SEN Units and Res Prov Top Ups 1,755,619 -1,361,601 453,619

Special School Top Ups 22,556,140 -8031567 14,876,140

Post 16 Top Ups 2,810,380 2,810,380

High Needs Out County 7,197,101 7,197,101

Provision For Pupils With SEN 4,705,018 4,705,018

Hospital & Outreach 0 0

Alternative Provision 3,757,171 3,757,171

MASH - Staffing 0 0

Educational Entitlement Team (incl 125k combined serv) 167,320 167,320

Virtual School including Kick into Study 217,351 217,351

Specialist Support Service 374,979 374,979

Sensory Impairment Provision 970,685 970,685

Education Health Care team 613,869 613,869

NPPS (Northamptonshire Parent Partnership Service) 9,791 9,791

prior year deficit repayment

Total High Needs 45,135,424 -9,393,168 36,153,424

DSG Total 315,129,253 0 -203,846,002 111,694,419

De-delegation -109,570

Original Budgets and SF approved Block Transfers Revised Budget

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



All figures are in £000's

DSG OVERALL SUMMARY

2021-22 Budget
Check to ESFA 

statement
HN to EY CSSB to HN SB to HN

Change to 

Historical 

Split

ESFA after block 

mmnts
Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment

Current Budget   

(Excluding c-fwd)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools 244,339 (1,122) 243,218 243,218 0 (194,453) 48,765

Early Years Provision 22,140 271 22,411 22,411 0 0 22,411

High Needs 44,693 (271) 183 1,122 45,727 45,727 0 (9,393) 36,334

Central Schools Service Block 3,908 (183) 3,725 3,725 0 0 3,725

DSG TOTAL 315,081 0 0 315,081 315,081 0 (203,846) 111,235

120,628 48,765

Schools Block Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Individual Schools Budgets (DSG) 0 0
Schools Budgets (DSG) 243,218 (194,453) 48,765
Academies 0 0
Redundancy/PRC - Schools de-delegated 15 15
Union Facilities (DSG) Schools de-delegated 22 22
School Improvement Group (DSG) de-delegated 73 73
Pupil Growth Fund 700 700
School Rates 0 0

Total Schools 244,027 0 (194,453) 49,574

Central Schools Services Block Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Schools Forum (DSG) 11 11
School Admissions 485 485
Copyright 300 300

DSG grant and other costs (ESG services) 858 858

Teacher's Pay and Pension 5 5
Redundancy/PRC 994 994
Northampton Schools PFI 0 0
Wooldale Centre - CCS (DSG) 0 0
School Standards & Effectiveness (Combined DSG LA Services) 434 434

Prevention & Early Help Operational - Parenting support  (Combined DSG LA Services) 34 34
Moderation  (Combined DSG LA Services) 15 15

Transport (Combined DSG LA Services) 215 215

Supervised Contact  (Combined DSG LA Services) 172 172

Northamptonshire Safeguarding Children Board (Combined DSG LA Services) 33 33

Total Central Schools Services Block 3,556 3,556

Early Years Provision Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

LSE - Early Years 785 785

3 & 4 Free Entitlement EYSFF 18,617 18,617

DSG - 2yr old Place Funding 2,182 2,182

Early Years - Inclusion Fund and DAF 827 827

Total Early Years Provision 22,411 22,411

High Needs Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

SEN Units and Res Prov Top Ups 1,756 -1,362 394

Special School Top Ups 22,557 -8,032 14,525

Post 16 Top Ups 2,810 2,810

High Needs Out County 7,197 7,197

Provision For Pupils With SEN 4,705 4,705

Hospital & Outreach 0 0

Alternative Provision 3,757 3,757

MASH - Staffing 43 43

Educational Entitlement Team (incl 125k combined serv) 293 293

Virtual School including Kick into Study 217 217

Specialist Support Service 375 375

Sensory Impairment Provision 971 971

Education Health Care team 614 614

NPPS (Northamptonshire Parent Partnership Service) 10 10

prior year deficit repayment 1,305 1,305

Total High Needs 46,609 0 -9,393 37,216

Revised Budget Revised Budget

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



All figures are in £000's

DSG OVERALL SUMMARY

2021-22 Budget Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment
Current Budget   

(Excluding c-fwd)

Central 

Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools 243,218 0 (194,453) 48,765 700

Early Years Provision 22,411 0 0 22,411 0

High Needs 44,693 0 (9,393) 36,334 0

Central Schools Service Block 3,725 0 0 3,725 0

DSG TOTAL 315,081 0 (203,846) 111,235 700

Schools Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Central

Schools Block

Individual Schools Budgets (DSG) 0 0

Schools Budgets (DSG) 243,218 (194,453) 48,765

Academies 0 0

Redundancy/PRC - Schools de-delegated 15 15

Union Facilities (DSG) Schools de-delegated 22 22

School Improvement Group (DSG) de-delegated 73 73

Pupil Growth Fund 700 700 700

School Rates 0 0

Total Schools 244,027 0 (194,453) 49,574 700

Central Schools Services Block Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools Forum (DSG) 11 11

School Admissions 485 485

Copyright 300 300

DSG grant and other costs (ESG services) 858 858

Teacher's Pay and Pension 5 5

Redundancy/PRC 994 994

Northampton Schools PFI 0 0

Wooldale Centre - CCS (DSG) 0 0

School Standards & Effectiveness (Combined DSG LA Services) 434 434

Prevention & Early Help Operational - Parenting support  (Combined DSG LA Services)34 34

Moderation  (Combined DSG LA Services) 15 15

Transport (Combined DSG LA Services) 215 215

Supervised Contact  (Combined DSG LA Services) 172 172

Northamptonshire Safeguarding Children Board (Combined DSG LA Services) 33 33

Total Central Schools Services Block 3,556 3,556

Early Years Provision Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

LSE - Early Years 785 785

3 & 4 Free Entitlement EYSFF 18,617 18,617

DSG - 2yr old Place Funding 2,182 2,182

Early Years - Inclusion Fund and DAF 827 827

Total Early Years Provision 22,411 22,411

High Needs Current Budget Carry Forward Recoupment Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

SEN Units and Res Prov Top Ups 1,756 (1,362) 394

Special School Top Ups 22,557 (8,032) 14,525

Post 16 Top Ups 2,810 2,810

High Needs Out County 7,197 7,197

Provision For Pupils With SEN 4,705 4,705

Hospital & Outreach 0 0

Alternative Provision 3,757 3,757

MASH - Staffing 43 43

Educational Entitlement Team (incl 125k combined serv) 293 293

Virtual School including Kick into Study 217 217

Specialist Support Service 375 375

Sensory Impairment Provision 971 971

Education Health Care team 614 614

NPPS (Northamptonshire Parent Partnership Service) 10 10

prior year deficit repayment 1,305 1,305

Total High Needs 46,609 0 (9,393) 37,216

Revised Budget

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



DSG Detailed Allocations

2021-22 Budget
Check to ESFA 

statement
HN to EY CSSB to HN SB to HN

After block 

movements 

Before 

Recoupment 

After block 

movements 

Before 

Recoupment 

Carry 

Forward 

pending CLT 

sign off

DfE 

Recoupment

Current Budget   

(Excluding c-

fwd)

Current 

Spend 

Allocated

 Balances pending 

C/Fwd 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £  £ 

Schools Block 244,339,457 (1,121,826) 243,217,632 243,217,632 (194,452,834) 48,764,797 49,574,368 (809,571)

Early Years Block 22,140,202 271,000 22,411,202 22,411,202 0 22,411,202 22,411,000 202                             

High Needs Block 44,692,999 (271,000) 183,000 1,121,826 45,726,825 45,726,825 (9,393,168) 36,333,657 36,153,424 180,233                      

Central Schools Service Block 3,908,081 (183,000) 3,725,081 3,725,081 0 3,725,081 3,555,627 169,454                      

DSG TOTAL 315,080,739 0 0 0 315,080,739 315,080,739 0 (203,846,002) 111,234,737 111,694,419 (459,682)

Original Budgets and SF approved Block Transfers Revised Budget

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Schools Forum - North
22 July 2021

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 8



BACKGROUND - pooled trade union facility time arrangements

• Maintained schools across Northamptonshire voted in Nov 2020 to de-
delegate DSG funds into a pooled trade union facility time arrangement 
for financial year 2021/22. West/North shadow Schools Forums ratified

• When NCC disaggregated the de-delegated monies (including 20/21 carry-
forward balances) were split between West and North

• Academy schools joined the 21/22 pooled arrangements, contributing 
funds via service level agreement

• NNC implemented a new Recognition Agreement with trade unions –
the agreement included provision of NNC-funded facility time so the 
council could engage and consult the lead education/schools trade 
unions via the corporate forums (JCNF/DCF)

P
age 56



North Northants – pooled facility time arrangement to 31.03.22
• The combined funds have been converted into 11 days per week of 

facility time and re-distributed amongst the trade unions who requested 
facility time to support their members in NNC schools. 

• For the period April’21 to March’22, the allocations below are for use 
across all schools participating in the pooled arrangement:

• GMB – 2 days/week
• Unison – 2 days/week
• NEU – 4 days/week
• NASUWT – 3 days/week

• The following slide sets out the three strands of facility time funding for 
2021/22

P
age 57



Schools Forum
de-delegated budget 
for TU facility time in 

schools
(maintained schools)

SLA budget
for TU facility time 

in academies 
(academies buy-back)

‘budget pot’ for 
11 days/week 

TU facility time

Schools employing an 
elected rep in a senior 
TU role will claim from 
pot via Schools Finance

NNC funded facility time (senior 
education/schools TU representatives)
UNISON - 0.5 day/week (0.1fte)
GMB - 0.5 day/week (0.1fte)
NEU - 1 day/week (0.2fte)
NASUWT - 1 day/week (0.2fte)

3 
days/week

8
days/week

P
age 58



North Northants Schools – trade union representatives during 21/22

*transitional arrangement for 2021/22 for continuity, whilst UNISON undergo a reorganisation of their branch structures

Union Name Contact Employer Days 
/week

GMB tbc 2

Unison Richard Poole* schoolsconvenor@northantsunison.co.uk Northamptonshire Children’s 
Trust

2

NEU Hayley Ansell

Simon Rielly 

tbc

tbc

Oundle CE Primary 

Kettering Buccleuch Academy

2

2

NASUWT Richard Kempa
Mike Molloy
Bruce Choto

Richard.Kempa@northnorthants.gov.uk
tbc
tbc

NNC
Havelock School 
Prince William School 

1
1
1

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Forming our Apprenticeship Strategy 

- Schools

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9



Financial Savings

• Apprenticeship training funded from the North Northamptonshire Council pot if 
you are a maintained school:

• That’s training that means £0 to your financial accounts

• Level 7 MBA or Level 6 degree - £0 

• Academy Trust:
• 100% of cost will come from your Apprenticeship Levy if available OR

• 5% of total cost of Apprenticeship paid from school accounts while Government funds 95% of cost

• Apprenticeship Salary costs for maintained schools
• Pay equivalent of 70% of salary costs for someone qualified in post i.e £35,000 salary is reduced to £24,500 

if employed in apprenticeship post.

P
age 62



Non 
Teaching

Teaching Leadership

Where is the greatest need

P
age 63



P
age 64



Question 1:

What prevents you from using Apprenticeships in your 

school?

Kerrie.Jacob@northnorthants.gov.uk

P
age 65

mailto:Kerrie.Jacob@northnorthants.gov.uk


Our aim is to work with you to develop an annual development plan
of targeted apprenticeship activity to meet staff and school / service 

requirements.

Contact us so we can discuss:

• how we can help and support

• identify suitable apprenticeship opportunities & recruitment 
support.

Kerrie.Jacob@northnorthants.gov.uk

P
age 66

mailto:Kerrie.Jacob@northnorthants.gov.uk


P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Hospital and Outreach 
Education AP Academy

Educational Provision for children and young people with medical and 
mental health difficulties who can’t attend school full time in North 

Northamptonshire.

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 10

http://www.nhoe.org.uk/


What is different with the new authorities?

P
age 70



Support for pupils with medical and mental 
health difficulties in North Northamptonshire

• Kettering and Northampton General Hospitals
• The Sett, The Burrows and The Brambles, CAMHS 

Units
• Advice and guidance
• Schools resource pack
• Parent/carer support 
• The Gatehouse
• Reintegration support to aid transition back to 

school           

P
age 71



AV1 project

P
age 72



What to find out more?

Website: www.nhoe.org.uk

Headteacher: James Shryane jshryane@nhoe.org.uk

P
age 73

http://www.nhoe.org.uk
mailto:jshryane@nhoe.org.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Item 11: Remote Meetings

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 11



Background

 National regulations govern the composition, constitution and procedures of 

Schools Forums.

 In common with local authority meetings, the Government introduced specific 

legislation during spring 2020 to enable Schools Forums to meet remotely 

during the coronavirus pandemic.

 That legislation had a ‘sunset clause’ and ceased to have effect on 1 April 2021.

 However, unlike the legislation applicable to local authority meetings which 

would require a change to primary legislation to continue to have effect, the law 

permitting remote meetings for Schools Forums was enacted via secondary 

legislation.

P
age 76



Remote meetings

 The Government has enacted The School and Early Years Finance (England) 

Regulations 2021, which have amended The Schools Forums (England) 

(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 to make permanent the 

provisions that have enable schools forums meetings to be held remotely. This 

includes (but is not limited to) telephone conferencing, video conferencing, live 

webcast, and live interactive streaming. 

 Where a schools forum decides to hold a public meeting by remote means only, 

the forum should provide support or make alternative arrangements so that any 

interested parties who do not have telephone or online access can attend virtual 

meetings.

 The Schools Forum Operational and Good Practice Guide has been updated to 

reflect this change.

P
age 77



Experience with Remote Meetings so far

 The previous Northamptonshire Schools Forum met remotely from May 2020 to 

March 2021.

 Although formal feedback on the success of remote meetings has not been 

sought from members, informally the procedures appear to have worked well.

 Attendance throughout this period has been good and there have been no 

issues with quorum. Meetings have also been available to stream via YouTube, 

increasing transparency for Forum. The costs and environmental impact 

associated with Forum meetings have also reduced.

P
age 78



Next Steps

 Forum members are invited to comment on whether remote meetings should 

become the default option for the NNC Schools Forum. 

 Forum may wish to take a vote on the issue.P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Item 12: Forum Forward 
Plan

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 12



Background

 This plan sets out an outline for Forum meetings over 
the next 12 months.

 Some items will be covered at the majority of meetings 
so these are listed separately.

 In some areas discussions and votes are required so 
these are included against the relevant meetings 
although there may be discussions at previous 
meetings.

 The listing will not be exhaustive but hopefully 
provides a useful planning tool for Forum.

P
age 82



Standing Forum Agenda items (if required)

 DSG Monitoring

 DfE/ESFA Funding announcements

 School Budgets

 High Needs  

 Early Years

 National Funding formula 

P
age 83



2021

Meeting date Agenda items

22 July 2021 Scheme for Financing Schools

Schools Outturn

Grant and DSG Funding Update

Schools Apprentice Levy Update

Hospital Outreach in North Northamptonshire

Remote Meetings

Note - * - Forum vote

P
age 84



2021
Meeting date Agenda items

21 October 2021 Schools block Combined Services Reports

Schools block 2022-23 central expenditure *

Primary and Secondary maintained schools de-delegation 

2022-23* (SIG, Trade union and school redundancies)

School budgets 2022-23 – weighted numbers for new 

schools/year groups

School budgets 2022-23 – PFI utility subsidy

High Needs place numbers 2022-23 

Early Years Update

Pupil Growth 2022-23 – projections and 2022-23 rates

Schools funding formula 2022-23 – consultation feedback

Note - * - Forum vote

P
age 85



2021

Meeting date Agenda items

16 December 2021 School Budgets 2022-23 – outcome of consultation and final proposals 

*

EYSFF – 2022-23

Early years central expenditure 2022-23* – outcome of consultation 

and consideration of proposals, including vote on central expenditure.

High Needs update including HN panel, SEN Units RAS, special schools 

– split site, and draft 21-22 HN budgets, HN place numbers 22-23 

academic year

DSG Finance risk register

Note - * - Forum vote

P
age 86



2021

Meeting date Agenda items

20 January 2022 NNC Draft Budget proposals 2022-23

EYSFF 2022-23

High Needs budgets 2022-23

Final School budgets 2022-23* (vote – if required)

Early years central expenditure 2022-23* – outcome of 

consultation and consideration of proposals, including vote 

on central expenditure.

DSG Finance Risk register

17 March 2022 DSG Monitoring

High Needs Update and 2022-23 Planning 

Early Years 2022-23

Scheme for Financing Schools

DSG Finance risk register

Note - * - Forum vote

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	1 Agenda
	4 Minutes of meeting held on 16 March 2021 and points arising/officer feedback
	5 Scheme for Financing Schools
	6 Schools 2020-21 Outturn Report
	Agenda Item 06 - Appendix - Schools Reviews 20-21 FY

	7 2021-22 Grant and DSG Budgets Update
	Agenda Item 07 - Appendix 1 - Detail 21-22 DSG Budgets SF
	Agenda Item 07 - Appendix 2 - Detail 21-22 DSG Budgets SF
	Agenda Item 07 - Appendix 3 - Summary 21-22 DSG Budgets SF

	8 Schools Facility Time Arrangements
	9 Schools Apprentice Levy Update
	10 Hospital Outreach in North Northamptonshire
	11 Remote Meetings (The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2021)
	12 Schools Forum Plan

